
Since 1918 

Board of Directors 

ROBERT E. ALVARADO 
Division  1 

JOE ESTES 
Division 2 

MARCO  HENRIQUEZ 
Division 3 

KATHY MAC LAREN 
Division 4 

VINCENT DINO 
Division 5 

ALESHIRE & WYNDER 
LLP 

Attorneys 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
2029 East Avenue Q • Palmdale, California 93550 •  Telephone  (661) 947-411 1 

Fax (661) 947-8604 
www.palmdalewater.org 

Facebook: palmdalewaterdistrict 
Twitter: @palmdaleH20 

Providing high quality water to our current and future customers at a reasonable cost. 

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting 
please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to 
inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, a Spanish interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making 
comments during the meeting if requested at least 48 hours before the meeting.  This was 
authorized by Board action on May 11, 2016 as a temporary measure while a long-term policy is 
developed. 

Adicionalmente, un intérprete en español estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer 
comentarios durante la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la 
junta directiva.  Esto fué autorizado por la mesa directiva en la junta del 11 de mayo del 2016 
como una medida temporal mientras se desarrolla una poliza a largo plazo. 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution 
of the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East 
Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5).  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-
4111 x1003 for public review of materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-
minutes.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, 
comments, or cheering.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability 
of the District to carry out its meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested 
to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 
Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or 
ordinance to take action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.

5) Presentations:

August 4, 2016 

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
Wednesday, August 10, 2016 

7:00 p.m. 

http://www.palmdalewater.org/


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2- August 4, 2016 

5.1) None at this time. 

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of special meeting held July 21, 2016.

6.2) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held July 27, 2016.

6.3) Payment of bills for August 10, 2016.

6.4) Approve absence of Director Estes from July 21, 2016 meeting due to illness.

6.5) Receive and file Semi-Annual Employee Reimbursement Report for the Period
Covering January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016. (Finance Manager Williams) 

7) Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Status report on Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash Balances as of June,
2016. (Finance Manager Williams for Financial Advisor Egan) 

7.2) Status report on Financial Statements, Revenue, and Expense and Departmental 
Budget Reports for June, 2016. (Finance Manager Williams) 

7.3) Status report on committed contracts issued and water revenue bond projects. 
(Assistant General Manager Knudson) 

7.4) Discussion and possible action on the development of a Citizen’s Advisory 
Committee. (Ad Hoc Spanish Interpreter Committee-Director Mac Laren/Director 
Dino) 

7.5) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2016 Budget:  

a) 32nd Annual Tri-State Seminar to be held September 20 – 22, 2016 in Las
Vegas, Nevada.  

b) Gas Chromatography Mass Spectrometry (GCMS) Training to be held
October 25 – 28, 2016 in Columbia, Maryland.  

8) Information Items:

8.1) Reports of Directors:

a) Meetings/General Report.

b) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair):

1) Finance Committee.

2) Personnel Committee

8.2) Report of General Manager. 

8.3) Report of General Counsel. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                     -3-                                               August 4, 2016 
 
 
9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be 
held, pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with Special 
Litigation Counsel regarding pending litigation to which the District is a party.  
The title of such litigation is as follows: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 

 
____________________________  
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
 
DDL/dd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: August 3, 2016    August 10, 2016 
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting
FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4 – APPROVE ABSENCE OF DIRECTOR ESTES 
FROM JULY 21, 2016 SPECIAL MEETING DUE TO ILLNESS 

Director Estes was absent from the July 21, 2016 Special Board Meeting. Agenda 
Item No. 6.4 has been placed on the Consent Calendar to excuse this absence pursuant to 
Section 4.07.2 of the District’s Rules and Regulations which states, “The Board shall 
excuse absences by approving such absences pursuant to the Consent Calendar at the next 
regular Board meeting.”  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: August 3, 2016 August 10, 2016 
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 
FROM: Mr. Michael Williams, Finance Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.5 – RECEIVE AND FILE SEMI-ANNUAL 
EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
COVERING JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board receive and file the Semi-Annual Employee Reimbursement 
Report for the period covering January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016. 

Background: 

Staff reimbursements are based on the approved budget.  It is required that the District 
report to governing body Employee Reimbursements in excess of $100.00 on a semi-
annual basis. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This work is part of Strategic Initiative No. 4 – Financial Health and Stability. 

Budget: 

Receiving and filing the Employee Reimbursement Report will not affect the budget. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Semi-Annual Employee Reimbursement Report for the period covering January 1,
2016 through June 30, 2016.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.5





P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: August 4, 2016               August 10, 2016 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Bob Egan, Financial Advisor 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – STATUS REPORT ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT AND 
CURRENT CASH BALANCES AS OF JUNE, 2016. 

Attached is the Investment Funds Report and current cash balance as of June 30, 2016.  The 
reports will be reviewed in detail at the Board meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



June 2016 March 2016

1-00-0103-100 Citizens - Checking 965,932.46         89,300.49             
1-00-0103-200 Citizens - Refund (1,633.48)             -
1-00-0103-300 Citizens - Merchant 72,329.45           129,087.46           

Bank Total 1,036,628.43     218,387.95           

1-00-0110-000 300.00                  300.00
1-00-0115-000 5,400.00               5,400.00                

1,042,328.43     224,087.95           

1-00-0135-000 Local Agency Investment Fund Acct. Total 11,790.36           11,790.36             

1-00-0120-000 UBS Money Market Account General (SS 11469)
2,619,500.19      4,104,559.65        

250,000.00         250,000.00           

Accrued interest 7,767.47               7,390.24                
2,877,267.66     4,361,949.89       

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912828SJ0 US Treasury Note 02/28/2017 0.87 1,000,000 1,002,580.00     1,001,410.00       

1,000,000 1,002,580.00     1,001,410.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

1 Safra National Bank 08/16/2016 0.60 240,000    240,040.80         240,100.80           
2 First Bank PR 11/07/2016 0.80 240,000    240,201.60         240,242.40           
3 Compass Bank 02/07/2017 0.95 240,000    240,441.60         240,482.40           
4 GE Cap Retail Bank 04/27/2017 1.84 200,000    201,440.00         201,512.00           
5 Discover Bank 05/02/2017 1.73 240,000    241,965.60         242,073.60           
6 Merrick Bank 06/12/2017 1.00 100,000    100,326.00         100,317.00           
7 Level One Bank 06/19/2017 0.65 101,000    101,229.27         101,215.13           
8 GE Cap Retail Bank 06/22/2017 1.78 200,000    202,038.00         202,158.00           
9 Capitol One Bank 08/14/2017 1.20 240,000    241,063.20         241,080.00           

10 Triumph Bank 09/26/2017 0.80 200,000    200,652.00         200,636.00           
11 MB Finl Bank 10/26/2017 0.85 200,000    200,008.00         199,940.00           

2,201,000 2,209,406.07     2,209,757.33       

Acct. Total 6,089,253.73     7,573,117.22       

1-00-1110-000 UBS Money Market Account Capital (SS 11475)

7.56 7.56
- -

Acct. Total 7.56 7.56

1-00-0125-000 UBS Access Account General (SS 11432)
221,323.91         229,550.45           

- -

Accrued interest 21,711.82           17,539.08             
243,035.73         247,089.53           

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

3133EDMN9 FFCB Bond 06/02/2016 0.37 1,000,000   - 1,000,000.00        

912828XF2 US Treasury Note 06/15/2018 1.125 1,000,000   1,010,040.00        -

912828KD1 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 2.610 1,500,000   1,581,090.00        1,571,430.00        

912828P53 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 0.75 1,000,000   1,001,950.00        993,670.00           

4,500,000 3,593,080.00     3,565,100.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

1 Goldman Sachs Bk 11/07/2016 1.00 240,000    240,405.60         240,501.60           
2 CIT Bank 11/06/2017 1.60 240,000    240,232.80         240,271.20           
3 BMW Bank 11/15/2018 1.96 240,000    245,160.00         245,128.80           
4 American Express 04/29/2019 1.44 240,000    243,640.80         243,391.20           
5 Synchrony Bank 04/14/2020 1.83 240,000    246,112.80         245,647.20           

1,200,000 1,215,552.00     1,214,940.00       

Acct. Total 5,051,667.73     5,027,129.53       

11,152,719.38   12,612,044.67     

1-00-1121-000 UBS Rate Stabilization Fund (SS 24016) - District Restricted

250,000.00         250,000.00           
230,290.46         230,281.82           

Acct. Total 480,290.46         480,281.82           

12,675,338.27   13,316,414.44     

Increase (Decrease) in Funds (641,076.17)       13,316,414.44     

1-00-1130-000 2013A Bonds - Project Funds (BNY Mellon)

Construction Funds 597,345.70         671,401.88           

GRAND TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

Total Managed Accounts

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

 Market Value 

 Market Value  Market Value 

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities
Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities
Maturity Date  Market Value 

CASH ON HAND

TOTAL CASH 

INVESTMENTS

UBS RMA Government Portfolio
UBS Bank USA Dep acct

PETTY CASH

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
 INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

June 30, 2016

CASH



8/3/2016

January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD

Total Cash Beginning Balance (BUDGET) 12,253,595          11,996,708          12,070,140          9,443,313            11,240,278          11,923,901          11,779,269          10,981,346          11,574,708          9,220,541            9,395,698            9,267,781            

Total Cash Beginning Balance 12,253,595          12,534,672          12,719,333          10,275,232          12,340,454          13,316,414          12,675,338          12,119,309          11,995,258          9,731,179            9,687,139            9,562,607            

Budgeted Water Receipts 1,541,128             1,523,788             1,575,809             1,590,982             1,790,396             1,946,460             2,165,382             2,202,231             2,030,994             1,946,460             1,688,521             1,673,349             21,675,500          
Water  Receipts 1,836,145            1,903,857            1,602,349            1,518,640            1,618,564            1,843,912            2,165,382             2,202,231             2,030,994             1,946,460             1,688,521             1,673,349             22,030,404          
DWR Refund (Operational Related) 1,718 28 1,746 
Other -

Total Operating Revenue (BUDGET) -
Total Operating Revenue (ACTUAL) 1,836,145             1,903,857             1,602,349             1,520,358             1,618,592             1,843,912             2,165,382             2,202,231             2,030,994             1,946,460             1,688,521             1,673,349             22,032,150          

Total Operating Expenses excl GAC (BUDGET) (1,237,486)           (1,217,967)           (1,591,629)           (1,550,533)           (1,568,100)           (1,439,060)           (1,770,025)           (1,614,651)           (1,795,266)           (1,449,785)           (1,434,170)           (1,550,028)           (18,218,700)         
GAC (BUDGET) (362,730)               (190,000)               (190,000)               (190,000)               (190,000)               (1,122,730)           

Operating Expenses excl GAC (ACTUAL) (1,356,117)           (1,281,496)           (1,961,054)           (1,361,831)           (1,377,208)           (1,883,383)           (1,770,025)           (1,614,651)           (1,795,266)           (1,449,785)           (1,434,170)           (1,550,028)           (18,835,013)         
GAC (62,730)                 (183,290)              (275,135)              (190,000)               (190,000)               (901,154)               

Prepaid Insurance (paid)/refunded (66,457)                 (66,457)                 
Total Operating Expense (ACTUAL) (1,418,847)           (1,531,243)           (2,236,189)           (1,361,831)           (1,377,208)           (1,883,383)           (1,770,025)           (1,804,651)           (1,795,266)           (1,449,785)           (1,624,170)           (1,550,028)           (19,802,625)         

Non-Operating Revenue Expenses:
Assessments, net (BUDGET) 664,439                253,955                14,289 2,027,090             739,781                11,042 75,342 127,302                - - 129,251                2,452,512             6,495,000             
Actual/Projected Assessments, net 684,181                313,172                15,308 2,078,805            818,666                12,539 70,859 127,302                - - 129,251                2,452,512             6,702,594             

RDA Pass-through (Successor Agency) 307,851                307,851                

Interest 3,168 4,991 9,069 8,540 9,385 9,296 2,915 2,915 2,915 2,915 2,915 2,935 61,958
Market Adjustment 7,983 (12,780)                 7,384 (3,392) (4,736) 19,028 13,486

Grant Re-imbursement 306,915                177,000                483,915                
Capital Improvement Fees 234,459                234,459                
DWR Refund (Capital Related) 98,537 37,228 50,000 50,000 235,765                
Other 3,415 26 590 (202) (33) (106) 8,330 8,330 8,330 8,330 8,330 8,370 53,710

Total Non-Operating Revenues (BUDGET) -
Total Non-Operating Revenues (ACTUAL) 698,746                305,408                32,351 2,182,288            1,168,361            347,671                316,563                138,547                61,245 11,245 140,496                2,690,817            8,093,739            

Non-Operating Expenses:
Budgeted Capital Expenditures  (514,999)               (306,567)               (287,878)               (40,796)                 (48,676)                 (26,296)                 (91,743)                 (91,743)                 (91,743)                 (91,743)                 (91,744)                 (918,263)               (2,602,191)           
Actual/Projected Capital Expenditures  (93,505)                 (302,341)              (24,615)                 (62,302)                 (242,404)              (31,036)                 (319,467)               (38,796)                 (26,296)                 (160,581)               - - (1,301,344)           
Uncommitted Capital Expenditures  - - - - - - (210,000)               (430,000)               (215,000)               (200,000)               (138,000)               - (1,193,000)           
WRB Capital Expenditures - - - - - - - - - - - (347,629)               (347,629)               (582,380)               

SWP Capitalized (717,495)              (170,388)              (196,069)              (170,390)              (170,390)              (170,390)              (717,492)               (170,390)               (201,804)               (170,388)               (170,388)               (170,388)               (3,195,972)           
Butte County Water Transfer (726,859)              (726,859)               (1,453,719)           

Bond Payments  -    Interest (1,084,814)           (1,076,522)           (2,161,336)           
Principal (537,114)              (1,020,439)           (1,557,553)           

Capital leases - Go West (2012 Lease) (17,296)                 (17,296)                 - (35,624)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (17,296)                 (208,585)               
Capital leases - Wells Fargo (Printer Lease) (6,672) (3,336) - (7,277) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (3,695) (46,846)                 

Total Non-Operating Expenses (ACTUAL) (834,969)              (493,362)              (1,842,612)           (275,592)              (433,785)              (949,277)              (1,267,950)           (660,177)              (2,561,052)           (551,961)              (329,379)              (1,265,868)           (11,465,983)         

Total Cash Ending Balance (BUDGET) 11,996,708          12,070,140          9,443,313            11,240,278          11,923,901          11,779,269          10,981,346          11,574,708          9,220,541            9,395,698            9,267,781            10,300,285          
Total Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 12,534,672          12,719,333          10,275,232          12,340,454          13,316,414          12,675,338          12,119,309          11,995,258          9,731,179            9,687,139            9,562,607            11,110,877          

Budget 10,300,285          
Indicates actual expenditures/revenues: Difference 810,592                

Indicates anticipated expenditures/revenues:

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
2016 Cash Flow Report   (Based on Jan. 19, 2016 Approved Budget)

Budget 2017 
Carryover 

Information



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: August 3, 2016 August 10, 2016 
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting  
FROM: Mr. Michael Williams, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7.2 – STATUS REPORTON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS, REVENUE, AND EXPENSE AND DEPARTMENTAL 
BUDGET REPORTS FOR JUNE, 2016  

Information for this item will be distributed at the Committee meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: August 4, 2016   August 10, 2016 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting  
FROM: Mr. Matthew R. Knudson, Assistant General Manager 
VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 – STATUS REPORT ON COMMITTED CONTRACTS 
ISSUED AND WATER REVENUE BOND PROJECTS. 

Attached is an updated spreadsheet for the Series 2013A Water Revenue Bond. The updated 
Project Payout Schedule will be distributed at the meeting. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Water Revenue Bond – Series 2013A Summary and Payout Detail

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



Project Work Order Description
 Allocated Based 

on Bond 
Contractual 
Commitment

Payout to Date
Grant 

Funds/Operating 
Budget

 Uncommitted 
Bond $ 

Spec. 1204 603-12 Ave. Q - Q-3, Division and Sumac 725,000$             765,085$             765,085$  -$  (40,085)$             

Spec. 1201 606-11 20th, Puerta, Sweetbriar, and 22nd St. E. 1,450,000$          1,487,261$          1,487,261$             -$  (37,261)$             

Spec. 1205 605-12 Frontier, 31st St. E., etc. between Ave. Q and Q-4 1,200,000$          1,291,539$          1,291,539$             485,000$  (91,539)$             

Spec. 1207 607-12 10th St. E. between Ave. P and Palmdale Blvd. 1,400,000$          1,327,806$          1,327,806$             -$  72,194$  

LRDSR 501-04 Littlerock Sediment Removal (EIR/EIS/Permits) 975,000$             645,443$             635,442$  -$  329,557$             

LCGRRP 400-12 Littlerock Recharge and Recovery (Feasibility) 1,500,000$          769,891$             769,891$  -$  730,109$             

UAR TBD Upper Amargosa Recharge (Project Capacity) 1,250,000$          1,250,000$          129,215$  445,009$  -$  

Spec. 0905 601-09 15th St. E. between Ave. P and Ave. Q (Material) -$  362,984$             362,984$  -$  (362,984)$            

PRGRRP 501-04 Palmdale Regional Recharge and Recovery (Permits) -$  1,530,000$          1,213,223$             (1,530,000)$        

Totals: 8,500,000$        9,430,009$        7,982,447$           930,009$             (930,009)$          

Requisition No. Payee Date Approved Invoice No. Project Payment Amount

2 Issuance Costs Jul 8, 2013 N/A WRB 24,815.84$            

3 BV Construction - Progress Payment #1 Jul 9, 2013 1 Spec. 1204 98,552.53$            

4 JT Eng. - Design Progress Payment Jul 17, 2013 5187 Spec. 1207 9,108.00$  

5 BV Construction - Progress Payment #2 Aug 5, 2013 2 Spec. 1204 145,175.44$          

6 BV Construction - Progress Payment #3-4 Sep 4, 2013 3 and 4 Spec. 1204 167,790.43$          

7 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Sep 30, 2013 1116.002-01 LRDSR 18,499.60$            

8 BV Construction - Progress Payment #5 Sep 30, 2013 5 Spec. 1204 46,862.08$            

9 BV Construction - Progress Payment #6 Oct 24, 2013 6 Spec. 1204 51,052.05$            

10 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Oct 24, 2013 1116.002-02 LRDSR 8,410.32$  

11 BV Construction - Progress Payment #7 Nov 7, 2013 7 Spec. 1204 87,960.50$            

12 BV Construction - Progress Payment #8 Dec 4, 2013 8 Spec. 1204 70,650.08$            

13 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Dec 4, 2013 1116.002-03 LRDSR 11,054.97$            

14 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jan 2, 2014 78236 LCGRRP 24,066.25$            

14 BV Construction - Progress Payment #1 Jan 2, 2014 1 Spec. 1201 29,925.00$            

14 BV Construction - Progress Payment #9 Jan 2, 2014 9 Spec. 1204 58,787.84$            

14 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jan 2, 2014 1116.002-04 LRDSR 36,178.95$            

14 JT Eng. - Design Progress Payment Jan 2, 2014 5200 Spec. 1207 9,518.00$  

15 BV Construction - Progress Payment #2 & #3 Jan 21, 2014 2 & 3 Spec. 1201 114,095.00$          

16 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Feb 24, 2014 1116.002-05 LRDSR 4,917.47$  

16 BV Construction - Progress Payment #4 & #5 Feb 24, 2014 4 & 5 Spec. 1201 131,743.15$          

17 BV Construction - Retention Payment Mar 3, 2014 10 Spec. 1204 38,254.26$            

17 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Mar 3, 2014 79010 & 80391 LCGRRP 113,652.66$          

18 BV Construction - Progress Payment #6 Mar 31, 2014 6 Spec. 1201 126,834.50$          

18 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Mar 31, 2014 1116.002-06 and 07 LRDSR 17,080.04$            

19 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Apr 16, 2014 78236 LCGRRP 28,228.60$            

19 BV Construction - Progress Payment #7 Apr 16, 2014 7 Spec. 1201 252,741.80$          

20 BV Construction - Progress Payment #8 May 15, 2014 8 Spec. 1201 69,825.00$            

20 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment May 15, 2014 1116.002-08 LRDSR 33,388.96$            

20 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment May 15, 2014 82422 & 80900 LCGRRP 135,858.74$          

21 BV Construction - Progress Payment #9 Jun 4, 2014 9 Spec. 1201 67,260.00$            

21 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jun 4, 2014 1116.002-09 LRDSR 31,845.93$            

22 BV Construction - Progress Payment #10 Jun 30, 2014 10 Spec. 1201 139,498.00$          

23 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jun 30, 2014 83735 LCGRRP 30,172.21$            

23 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jun 30, 2014 1116.002-10 LRDSR 10,672.32$            

24 BV Construction - Progress Payment #11 Jul 21, 2014 11 Spec. 1201 141,217.50$          

24 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jul 21, 2014 84147 LCGRRP 26,431.83$            

24 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jul 21, 2014 1116.002-11 LRDSR 6,274.20$  

Water Revenue Bond - Series 2013A
Updated: August 3, 2016

Page 1 of 3



25 BV Construction - Progress Payment #12 Aug 19, 2014 12 Spec. 1201 84,386.60$            

25 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Aug 19, 2014 1116.002-12 LRDSR 11,115.51$            

26 BV Construction - Progress Payment #13 Sept 10, 2014 13 Spec. 1201 47,654.85$            

26 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Sept 10, 2014 1116.002-13 LRDSR 37,715.30$            

27 BV Construction - Progress Payment #14 Sept 29, 2014 14 Spec. 1201 122,741.90$          

27 PWD - Reimbursement Sept 29, 2014 N/A Spec. 0905 260,611.31$          

28 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #1 Oct 14, 2014 1 Spec. 1207 310,752.41$          

28 City of Palmdale - Recharge Project Oct 14, 2014 PWD-2014 UAR 38,402.47$            

29 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Oct 23, 2014 1116.002-14 LRDSR 56,223.72$            

29 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Oct 23, 2014 87036 LCGRRP 80,732.32$            

30 BV Construction - Progress Payment #15 Nov 12, 2014 15 Spec. 1201 84,974.65$            

30 Aspen - Bio and Cultural Report Nov 12, 2014 3277.001-01 Spec. 1205 10,608.08$            

30 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #2 Nov 12, 2014 2 Spec. 1207 195,802.84$          

31 ANM Construction - Paving Nov 17, 2014 011115-1 Spec. 0905 102,373.00$          

32 Aspen - Bio and Cultural Report Nov 26, 2014 3277.001-02 Spec. 1205 1,147.81$              

32 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Nov 26, 2014 1116.002-15 LRDSR 76,161.79$            

33 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Dec 29, 2014 88741 LCGRRP 71,831.14$            

33 BV Construction - Progress Payment #16 (Retention) Dec 29, 2014 16 - Retention Spec. 1201 74,363.05$            

33 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Dec 29, 2014 1116.002-16 LRDSR 6,136.99$              

34 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #3 Jan 7, 2015 3 Spec. 1207 294,189.21$          

35 BV Construction - Progress Payment #1 Jan 26, 2015 1 Spec. 1205 152,445.08$          

35 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jan 26, 2015 1116.002-17 LRDSR 13,105.63$            

36 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Feb 2, 2015 89538 LCGRRP 78,066.17$            

37 BV Construction - Progress Payments #2 and #3 Feb 19, 2015 2 and 3 Spec. 1205 195,962.20$          

37 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Feb 19, 2015 1116.002-18 LRDSR 8,814.60$              

38 BV Construction - Progress Payment #4 Mar 9, 2015 4 Spec. 1205 123,500.00$          

38 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #4 Mar 9, 2015 4 Spec. 1207 70,371.25$            

39 BV Construction - Progress Payment #5 Mar 31, 2015 5 Spec. 1205 144,210.00$          

39 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Mar 31, 2015 1116.002-19 LRDSR 12,057.52$            

39 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Mar 31, 2015 90983 LCGRRP 134,407.47$          

40 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #5 Apr 13, 2015 5 Spec. 1207 116,680.99$          

41 BV Construction - Progress Payment #6 Apr 27, 2015 6 Spec. 1205 125,003.43$          

41 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Apr 27, 2015 1116.002-20 LRDSR 7,540.62$              

42 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #6 May 19, 2015 6 Spec. 1207 103,592.13$          

43 BV Construction - Progress Payment #7 Jun 8, 2015 7 Spec. 1205 72,296.90$            

43 Aspen - Native American Monitoring Jun 8, 2015 3277.001-03 Spec. 1205 7,702.52$              

43 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jun 8, 2015 1116.002-21 LRDSR 44,109.14$            

44 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jun 23, 2015 1116.002-22 LRDSR 34,285.59$            

44 Cedro Construction - Progress Payment #7 Jun 23, 2015 7 Spec. 1207 60,299.73$            

45 BV Construction - Progress Payment #8 Jul 15, 2015 8 Spec. 1205 111,492.00$          

45 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jul 15, 2015 93555 LCGRRP 46,443.99$            

45 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jul 15, 2015 93556 PRGRRP 251,714.21$          

46 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jul 21, 2015 1116.002-23 LRDSR 16,484.80$            

46 Aspen - Native American Monitoring Jul 21, 2015 3277.001-04 Spec. 1205 4,152.75$              

46 City of Palmdale - Recharge Project Jul 21, 2015 PWD-2015 UAR 54,977.18$            

47 BV Construction - Progress Payment #9 Aug 11, 2015 9 Spec. 1205 107,542.76$          

47 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Aug 11, 2015 94435 PRGRRP 238,422.35$          

48 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Sept 14, 2015 1116.002-24 LRDSR 9,024.21$              

48 Cedro Construction - Final Payment/Retention Sept 14, 2015 Final Retention Spec. 1207 157,491.76$          

49 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Sept 28, 2015 1116.002-25 LRDSR 1,034.50$              

49 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Sept 28, 2015 95632 PRGRRP 190,705.91$          

50 Aspen - Native American Monitoring Oct. 12, 2015 3277.001-05 Spec. 1205 5,581.50$              

50 BV Construction - Progress Payment #10 Oct. 12, 2015 10 Spec. 1205 92,241.20$            

51 Aspen - Native American Monitoring Nov. 4, 2015 3277.001-06 Spec. 1205 4,707.50$              

Page 2 of 3



51 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Nov. 4, 2015 96460 PRGRRP 129,704.49$          

52 Aspen - Native American Monitoring Dec. 28, 2015 96461 Spec. 1205 3,013.50$              

52 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Dec. 28, 2015 97775 PRGRRP 159,241.36$          

53 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jan. 21, 2016 98545 PRGRRP 67,612.54$            

53 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jan. 21, 2016 1116.002-25 & 27 LRDSR 3,751.40$              

54 BV Construction - Progress Payment #11 Feb. 3, 2016 11 Spec. 1205 67,200.17$            

55 BV Construction - Retention Payment Feb. 23, 2016 Retention Spec. 1205 62,731.78$            

55 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Feb. 23, 2016 99318 PRGRRP 58,537.45$            

56 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Mar. 28, 2016 1116.003-01 LRDSR 33,898.64$            

56 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Mar. 28, 2016 99918 PRGRRP 57,193.72$            

57 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Apr. 19, 2016 100572 PRGRRP 7,364.72$              

58 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment May 23, 2016 1116.003-02 LRDSR 5,535.88$              

58 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment May 23, 2016 101354 PRGRRP 26,258.21$            

59 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jun 20, 2016 1116.003-03 LRDSR 37,001.22$            

59 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jun 20, 2016 102083 PRGRRP 5,389.60$              

60 Aspen - EIR/EIS Progress Payment Jul 21, 2016 1116.003-05 & 05 LRDSR 43,122.23$            

60 Kennedy/Jenks - Progress Payment Jul 21, 2016 103204 PRGRRP 21,078.38$            

61 City of Palmdale - Recharge Project Jul 27, 2016 PWD-2016 UAR 35,834.85$            

Page 3 of 3



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: August 3, 2016 August 10, 2016
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 
FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF A CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE. (AD 
HOC SPANISH INTERPRETER COMMITTEE-DIRECTOR MAC 
LAREN/DIRECTOR DINO) 

 The formation of a Citizens Advisory Committee is presented to the full Board at 
the recommendation of the Ad Hoc Spanish Interpreter Committee of Directors Mac 
Laren and Dino for discussion to determine the best method for forming a Citizens 
Advisory Committee. To assist the Board with this task, Citizens Advisory Committee 
bylaws from five different agencies are attached. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Denver Water Citizens Advisory Committee bylaws

 Merced County Association of Governments’ Citizens Advisory Committee
bylaws

 South Orange County Special Education Local Planning Area Citizens Advisory
Committee bylaws

 City of Stockton Citizens Advisory Committee bylaws

 Yolo County Citizens Advisory Committee bylaws

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



Denver Water Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 
Denver Water’s Citizens Advisory Committee is a 10-member volunteer committee that advises Denver 
Water staff and the Board of Water Commissioners on a variety of issues while encouraging and 
coordinating public participation in the water department’s policy-making process. 

Purpose of Citizens Advisory Committee 

Denver Water’s Citizens Advisory Committee was created as a result of the 1979 Foothills Agreement. In 
the late 1970s, Denver Water needed a new treatment plant and reservoir. Public concern about growth 
issues and the project’s potential environmental impacts led to the Foothills Agreement — a pact 
between Denver Water, federal agencies, elected officials and the environmental community. Among 
other requirements, terms of the agreement required Denver Water to form a citizens group charged 
with representing public interests. 

Among other responsibilities, the Citizens Advisory Committee is in charge of: 

• providing advice on the use and effectiveness of the Board’s public participation techniques;

• assisting in and facilitating public review and discussion of Board plans;

• participating with Denver’s Board of Water Commissioners in making plans, records, information
and studies available to the public;

• advising the Board in issues of interest to the committee, such as the supply, treatment and
distribution of water;

• providing consultation to the Board so that public reaction to Board proposals, such as rate
changes, conservation activities, recreation issues, distribution system extensions, construction
projects and other activities, will be recorded and available to the Board and staff early in the
planning process; and

• developing an annual work plan with specific activities defining its scope of work.

Citizens Advisory Committee Members 

Members of the Citizens Advisory Committee serve two three-year terms. The committee is comprised 
of three Denver customers, two West Slope residents, one suburban customer, one environmental 
representative, one public interest group representative, one representative from the Home Builders 
Association of Metro Denver and one suburban distributor representative. Committee members are 
selected as a result of the committee’s recommendations to Denver’s Board of Water Commissioners. 

Citizens Advisory Committee Bylaws 

Citizens Advisory Committee 



I. Preamble  

A. The Denver Board of Water Commissioners recognizes that there is a need for full and 
timely public participation in the decision making process of the Board on important 
Board activities and, to insure that participation, it has agreed to create a Citizens 
Advisory Committee with a substantial degree of independence. 

B. Under the Denver City Charter, the Board has not and legally cannot delegate to the 
committee any responsibility placed upon the Board by law. 

II. Mission Statement  

A. It is the mission of the Citizens Advisory Committee to advise the Board:  

1. on matters of interest to the Committee  

2. on matters of citizen participation  

3. to facilitate public review and discussion of Board plans  

III. Composition of the Citizens Advisory Committee  

A. Size of the Committee – 10 members. (Amended December 2007)  

B. Terms of Membership:  

1. Term of membership is to be three years. Terms will be staggered.  

2. Maximum service – A member shall be limited to two successive terms without 
a break in service of at least one year.  

C. Qualifications and Appointment of Committee Members:  

1. Appointing authority. The Denver Water Board shall be the appointing authority 
for the Citizens Advisory Committee, subject to the recommendations which 
follow.  

2. Committee Leadership. The Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC leadership shall 
be composed of two members of the Committee, a Chairperson and a Vice-
Chairperson. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson positions shall be elected in 
November by members of the CAC for a term of one year running from January 
to December. In the event of a vacancy in the Chairperson’s position, the Vice-
Chair will take up the position and a new Vice-Chairperson will be elected by the 
CAC. Vacancies shall be filled within thirty (30) days of vacancy.  

3. Nomination Procedure:  

a. Geographical balance – The four customer positions (three from Denver 
and one from the suburban service area), the suburban water 
distributor and the two representatives from the Western Slope all must 
be from those geographical areas. The person representing the public 
interest group must be supplied with water from Denver Water, but 



may live either inside or outside the City and County of Denver. The 
representative from the HBA of Metropolitan Denver must be an active 
member of the HBA. The environmental group representative must be 
an active member of an environmental organization. The overall 
composition of the CAC will consist of at least five Denver residents. 
(Amended December 2007)  

b. Required representation – The membership shall include persons who 
represent the following groups: Denver citizens (3), a suburban 
customer, a member of the HBA of metropolitan Denver, an 
environmental group, a public interest group, a suburban water 
distributor and two Western Slope residents; one who resides in either 
Summit, Grand or Eagle County and one who resides in either Mesa, 
Delta, Montrose or Garfield County. (Amended December 2007).  

c. Proposals for nominations – Proposals for nominations may be 
submitted to the Citizens Advisory Committee by any interested 
individual, organization. or governmental entity, after the existence of 
open positions has been publicized.  

d. Who makes the nominations – Nominations shall be made by the 
Citizens Advisory Committee itself. The Western Slope representatives 
shall be selected from the proposals for nomination of any interested 
individual, organization, or governmental entity including Regional 
Council of Governments from that area.  

e. Number of nominations – For each of the 10 positions there shall be a 
maximum of two nominees submitted to the Denver Water Board of 
Commissioners for each position. The Board shall choose the 
membership of the Citizens Advisory Committee from among the 
nominees for that position, no later than November of the year 
preceding the appointment. If the nominations for any particular 
position are deemed to be unacceptable to the Board, it is 
recommended, but not required, that the Board will indicate to the 
Committee in writing reasons for the nominees' unacceptability, and 
the committee will submit further nominations for the Board's 
consideration. (Amended December 2007)  

f. Selection – Interviews of candidates by the CAC shall occur at an open 
meeting, but deliberations regarding the candidates may be at a closed 
meeting. It is recommended that the Board interview nominees at an 
open meeting, but deliberate in choosing among the nominees in a 
closed meeting.  

g. Vacancies upon expiration of term or otherwise nominations to fill any 
vacancy on the committee shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of this section 3; provided, that the committee may select its 



nominees from the proposals for nominations for the particular vacancy 
or vacancies to be filled if said proposals were received by the 
committee within 11 months prior to the making of such nominations 
and if said proposals were received in response to publicizing of the 
existence of open positions in the particular categories of eligibility in 
which said vacancy or vacancies are to be filled. In the event of a failure 
to provide nominations to the Board for any vacancy in the committee 
within 90 days of notification of said vacancy, the Board shall thereafter 
be free to appoint any person, having the qualifications set forth in 
these bylaws, to fill such vacancy.  

4. General Qualifications. All committee members have the following general 
qualifications:  

a. Except for the representatives from the Western Slope, the 
Environmental Group and the HBA of Metropolitan Denver, all 
committee members shall be users of Denver water in their private 
residences.  

b. Each member of the Committee shall be a United States citizen and a 
resident of Colorado for five years or more.  

c. Each member of the Committee shall have contact with constituents 
from the group/area they represent.  

d. No employee of Denver Water or member of the Board shall be a 
member of the committee during the term of his/her employment or 
membership.  

e. Removal of Committee Members. Committee members shall serve in 
accordance with the provisions of these bylaws. Any Committee 
member who shall incur three consecutive absences from regular 
meetings without good cause shown may be removed from the 
Committee by the majority of the remaining members.  

IV. Recommended Operating Procedures of the Citizens Advisory Committee  

A. Associate Memberships and Committees:  

1. In order to assure a maximum level of public participation, "associate 
membership" on the committee shall be available to anyone filing a written 
application at any time with the Citizens' Advisory Committee. By retaining such 
membership, an associate member would be in a position to provide opinions to 
the advisory committee for consideration by that committee and by the Board. 
There shall be a method for periodic updating of membership roles should lack 
of interest occur in an associate member.  



2. It is anticipated that appointment of associate members to ad hoc committees 
and subcommittees, task forces, etc., will be undertaken and that they be 
utilized in various areas and for such periods of time as needed, such as:  

a. Conservation Programs 

b. Rates 

c. Specific Diversion and Supply Projects 

d. Projections 

e. Economic Analysis 

f. Extensions of the Distribution System 

g. Policy for New Taps 

h. Channelization Projects 

i. Flow Management 

j. Coordination with Other Agencies 

k. Long Range Planning 

l. Other Areas as Necessary 

3. It is intended that the Committee and Subcommittees, as well as task forces, 
will be citizen participatory entities in regard to the areas of concern but will not 
be authorized to employ consultants or engage in technical or engineering 
studies at Denver Water Board expense.  

B. Citizen Participation – Citizen participation techniques shall be stimulated by use of the 
following when necessary:  

1. Public meetings All committee meetings shall be open to the public and the 
committee may receive comments from the public if it so desires. The following 
types of meetings should be considered:  

a. Working Meetings 

b. Open Meetings 

c. Forums 

d. Workshops 

e. Public Hearings 

2. Other techniques:  

a. Written communications including articles in Denver Water publications 

b. Utilization of existing organizations of all types 



c. Monitoring developments 

d. Mediation contacts 

C. Procedures – The following procedures shall be implemented to assist in and facilitate 
public review and discussion of Board plans:  

1. Statement of Issues and of Findings – The committee shall proceed as follows in 
stating issues or findings:  

a. Any statement of issues and any statement of findings may be delivered 
to the Board, to the news media or to others as appropriate, but in all 
instances the Board shall receive such information in sufficient time 
prior to its release to others to allow the Board to comment thereon to 
the committee. 

b. Statement of issues and any statement of findings shall record the vote 
of the members. Voting may occur when a quorum (6) is present and 
both the majority and minority opinions will be recorded. (Amended 
December 2007) 

c. The value of minority opinions is recognized and such opinions and 
reports are to be encouraged. Minority opinions and reports shall be 
allowed and shall be released concurrently with the majority reports. 
Members espousing minority viewpoints shall have access to support 
facilities equal to that of persons espousing majority viewpoints. 

2. Access to Board data and information – Committee access to Board data and 
information shall be assisted.  

a. The Denver Water Board has agreed to make available to the members 
of the Citizens' Advisory Committee, and through the Committee to the 
public in general, its present and future plans, financial records, 
information and studies (with the exception of confidential information 
relating to property acquisition and other property matters; confidential 
litigation matters (judicial or administrative) and documents subject to 
the attorney-client privilege; personnel records; and other material 
exempt from disclosure by law). A program of making available to the 
public such plans, records, information, and studies will be developed 
by the Water Board in concert with its Citizens' Advisory Committee. No 
committee member shall copy or reveal the contents of any restricted 
document submitted for review. 

b. Requests for access by the committee to Board data and information 
shall be submitted by the chairperson of the committee to the President 
of the Board, or their official designee. 

V. Role of the Citizens Advisory Committee and the Scope of its Work  



A. Provide advice on the use and effectiveness of citizen participation techniques by the 
Board. 

B. Assist in and facilitate public review and discussion of Board plans. 

C. Participate with the Board in developing a program of making plans, records, 
information and studies available to the public.  

D. Advise the Board in planning for issues of interest to the Committee including but not 
limited to supply, treatment and distribution of water. 

E. Provide consultation to the Board for establishing a mechanism for assuring that the 
reaction of interested agencies and individuals to Board proposals, such as rate changes, 
conservation activities, recreation issues, distribution system extension, construction of 
projects to develop or expand supply facilities, etc., will be recorded and made available 
early in the planning process to the Board members and staff responsible for 
formulating decisions. 

F. Provide advice to the Board on minimizing adverse fishery and recreational impacts. 

G. Provide advice to the Board on management of stream flows. 

H. Provide advice on developing a program to achieve timely consultation with affected 
property owners and interested groups and agencies, on matters dealing with 
channelization or management of flows. 

I. It is recommended that no later than April of each year, the Committee will develop an 
annual work plan with specific activities defining its scope of work. The committee is not 
limited to these activities during the course of the year. 

VI. Amendment of Bylaws  

Upon adoption of these bylaws by the Water Board, they shall govern all actions of the Citizens Advisory 
Committee. Amendment to any provisions of these bylaws may be effected by the Board upon the 
recommendation of at least two thirds of the members of the committee. 

 

Citizens Advisory Committee Topics  

The Citizens Advisory Committee addresses a variety of topics that concern Denver Water customers, 
including: 

• Drought Response – Members of the Citizens Advisory Committee participate in the Drought 
Response Task Force, which hosts public meetings and makes suggestions regarding drought 
response to Denver Water staff and the Board of Water Commissioners.  

• Conservation Programs – Members review and encourage new conservation projects.  

• Customer Service – The committee remains informed of customer complaints and concerns and 
responds accordingly.  

http://www.water.denver.co.gov/SupplyPlanning/DroughtInformation/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/Conservation/


• Future Service and Growth – The Citizens Advisory Committee stays informed about Denver
Water's recycle plant, possible future storage projects and population growth in the Denver-
metro area.

• Consumption Blocks – The Citizens Advisory Committee stays informed about Denver Water's
block rate structure and makes suggestions about it to the Board.

• Rates – Members review rate changes and offers their input to Denver Water staff.

• Recreation – The Citizens Advisory Committee also addresses topics regarding recreation on the
High Line Canal, Dillon Reservoir, Waterton Canyon and other areas.

The Citizens Advisory Committee will address other topics of concern to Denver Water customers. Send 
the committee an e-mail, or attend a meeting, which is held the third Thursday of each month. 

CAC Meeting Agenda and Minutes 

The Citizens Advisory Committee meets 5 to 7 p.m. on the third Thursday of each month in Denver 
Water’s Board Room, unless specified on the agenda. All meetings are held at Denver Water, 1600 West 
12th Ave., unless otherwise noted on the agenda. Agendas will be posted one week before the meeting. 
Minutes will be posted after approval at the following meeting. 

When attending a meeting, please take any handouts you are interested in, help yourself to food or 
drink and find a seat along either wall. Citizens Advisory Committee members will be seated around the 
table. Please silence all pagers and cell phones. Public comment starts at the beginning of the meeting. 
Please limit your comments to four minutes, but if you need additional time, talk with the committee’s 
chair before the meeting starts. 

http://www.water.denver.co.gov/WaterQuality/RecycledWater/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/SupplyPlanning/Planning/FutureWaterSupply/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/BillingRates/RatesCharges/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/BillingRates/RatesCharges/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/Recreation/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/Recreation/HighLineCanal/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/Recreation/Dillon/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/Recreation/WatertonCanyon/
mailto:CitizensAdvisoryCommittee@denverwater.org
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/ContactUs/Directions/
http://www.water.denver.co.gov/AboutUs/CitizensAdvisoryCommitteeCAC/Members/


* Article II – amended portion – August 17, 2006

THE CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

BYLAWS 

WHEREAS, This Committee having been officially appointed by the Governing Board of the Merced 
County Association of Governments and having been designated as the Citizens Advisory Committee for Regional 
Transportation Planning is desirous of operating in an organized manner.  The Committee fulfills requirements of 
the 1991 Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) to develop a proactive public involvement 
process in developing transportation plans and programs.  Now, therefore, be it resolved that the following bylaws 
be adopted and by the passage of this resolution by the majority vote, are declared to constitute the official bylaws of 
the Citizens Advisory Committee for Regional Transportation Planning.  

ARTICLE I - PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Committee is to serve as the formal means by which public input is provided and aid is 
given to the development and maintenance of the public involvement of the Merced County Regional Transportation 
Planning process, and to advise the Governing Board of the Merced County Association of Governments, who serve 
as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Merced County.  The objectives of the Committee include: 

1. The use of the skills, knowledge and experience of its members, and the organizations
and groups they represent, to assist and advise the Merced County Association of
Governments, in respect to plans and programs for the orderly development of the
various modes of transportation in Merced County;

2. Facilitate transportation systems in such a way as to foster job creation and enhance
current employment levels and improve the business and economic climate for the
region;

3. Identify and discuss issues on public safety on the region’s transportation system;

4. Facilitate two-way communication between the citizens of the region and the Governing
Board, through the MCAG staff; and

5. Serve as public advisory medium for the promotion of public and private programs and
support of the above-stated objectives.

* ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP
The membership of this Committee shall be composed of representatives from the fields of: real estate 

(one), commerce (one), economic development (one), construction (one), civil engineering (one), goods movement 
(one), agriculture (one), small business (one), education (one), a student representative (one), a financial 
representative (one) and a water/irrigation district representative (one) and citizens at-large members (five) to 
provide geographic representation. 

The official membership may by majority vote appoint special committees composed of non-members or 
request special information or advice from knowledgeable persons as is necessary to carry out the objectives of the 
Citizens Advisory Committee. Said non-member committees or persons shall be appointed for the time required to 
accomplish said objective. 

ARTICLE III - TERM 

Each member of the Committee may serve up to two complete, four-year terms. At the end of a full first 
term, a member may be re-appointed by the Governing Board. A member appointed to serve out the balance of the 



 * Article II – amended portion – August 17, 2006 

term of an existing vacancy may be re-appointed at the conclusion of the term and may ultimately serve two, 
complete, four-year terms in addition to the initial term. 
 

ARTICLE IV - ATTENDANCE 
 
 Members shall attend all the scheduled meetings of the Committee.  In an event when a member cannot 
attend the meeting an alternate may be substituted.  The member shall contact MCAG staff and notify staff that they 
will be sending an alternate to the meeting, along with a name and phone number.  The alternate shall have the same 
voting privileges as a member.  If a member fails to attend two (2) consecutive meetings, the member is considered 
to have vacated the position.  Another representative shall be appointed to fill the position subsequent to notifying 
the member.  
 

ARTICLE V - VOTING 
 
 Each member of the committee shall have one (1) vote. The above-stated members shall in the manner 
stated above be entitled to cast their vote on all matters brought to a vote during a regular or called meeting which 
said member is present and providing a quorum is present at the time as specified in Article VI. 
 

ARTICLE VI - QUORUM 
 
 The majority of the voting membership of the Citizens Advisory Committee officially holding 
appointments from the appointing authority shall constitute a quorum. A quorum shall be necessary for the 
transaction of  any official business by the Citizens Advisory Committee for regional transportation planning. 
 
     

ARTICLE VII - OFFICER, ELECTION OF  
Section 1 
 
 The officers of the Citizens Advisory Committee for regional transportation planning shall be a 
Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson and shall be selected in accordance with Section 2 of this Article.  MCAG staff 
shall act as Secretary for the Committee. 
 
Section 2 
 
 All elected officials shall serve for a term of one (1) year.  
 
 

ARTICLE VIII - DUTIES OF OFFICERS 
Section 1 
 
 The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Committee, and is eligible to vote on all matters 
coming before the Committee. The Chairperson shall be responsible for conducting all meetings in an orderly 
manner and of appointing the necessary committees which are needed to meet the objectives of the Citizens 
Advisory Committee. 
 
Section 2 
 
 The Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the duties and assume all the responsibilities of the Chairperson in 
his/her absence. 
 

ARTICLE IX - MEETINGS 
 
 Regular meetings of the Committee shall be held no less than one (1) in every quarter.  The Committee 
shall meet routinely on the first Friday of the month at 8:30 a.m. at the MCAG Conference Room.  At least 72 hours 
before a regular meeting, the agenda for that meeting shall be posted at the MCAG office.  Notice of regular 
meetings shall be mailed or delivered to each member of the committee at least five (5) days prior to each  meeting 



* Article II – amended portion – August 17, 2006

and accompanying the notice shall be the written agenda for that meeting and supporting or pertinent documents 
relating to the agenda items.  

Any regular meeting of the committee may be canceled by the Chairperson upon giving of at least 72 hours 
written notice to all members of the committee. 

ARTICLE X - SPECIAL MEETINGS 

Special meetings of the Citizens Advisory Committee may be called by the Chairperson, or in his/her 
absence, the Vice-Chairperson or by a majority of the Committee.  Notice by letter or by phone 24 hours prior to the 
scheduled time shall be considered adequate. 

ARTICLE XI - ANNUAL MEETINGS 

An annual meeting of the Citizens Advisory Committee shall be held at the last regularly scheduled 
meeting in each year. During this annual meeting, the following activities shall take place: 

a. A summation of progress made, work accomplished, and the proposed work program shall be
prepared for the coming year for delivery to the Chairperson of the Governing Board of the
Merced County Association of Governments; and

b. Officers for the coming year shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Citizens Advisory
Committee.

ARTICLE XII - AMENDMENTS 
Section 1 

The bylaws of the Citizens Advisory Committee for regional transportation planning as officially adopted 
shall be amended only in accordance with the following procedures: 

a. All members holding official appointments to the Citizens Advisory Committee shall be furnished
a copy of the proposed changes and amendments to the official bylaws at least 30 days prior to any
official vote on said proposed changes and amendments; and

b. Any changes in amendments to the official bylaws by the Citizens Advisory Committee shall be
read at one (1) meeting of the Citizens Advisory Committee.   Said meeting shall be a regular
meeting held in accordance with the provision of the bylaws presently in effect.

Section 2 

A quorum of the members present at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Citizens Advisory Committee 
shall be deemed sufficient to recommend the MCAG Governing Board adopt any changes in amendments to the 
bylaws of the Citizens Advisory Committee. 



















  

 

 
CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

MEASURE A ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
BY-LAWS 

 
October 23, 2014  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On November 5, 2013, the citizens of Stockton approved Measure A, a ¾-cent general 
sales tax measure, effective April 1, 2014. The citizens of Stockton also approved 
Measure B, an advisory measure. Measure A as approved by the citizens of Stockton 
and the accompanying advisory Measure B as approved by the citizens and supported 
by City Council action February 25, 2014, are recorded in the General Fund of the City 
as appropriate of a general sales tax measure.  All associated revenue and 
expenditures are maintained in the City of Stockton General Fund although not 
necessarily in distinctive accounts or separate departments or divisions.   

Included in the Ordinance for this measure is a seven-member Citizens’ Advisory 
Committee, hereafter  referred to as the ‘Committee’, appointed by the City Council, 
which shall meet at least annually  for the general oversight of expenditures and 
revenues generated by the tax imposed by this Ordinance and to make 
recommendations to the City Council regarding those expenditures.   

In addition, the City Council approved a Charter for the general objectives and duties of 
the Committee.  The Committee shall serve as the single statutory oversight committee 
for Measures A and B. 

MISSION AND PURPOSE  
 
These By-Laws establish the responsibilities and processes to be used by the 
Committee in compliance with Ordinance 2013-07-09-16-1, hereafter  referred to as 
‘Ordinance’ and the City of Stockton Transaction and Use Tax Ordinance Citizens’ 
Oversight Committee Charter, hereafter referred to as ‘Charter’. 
 
The mission of a strong and independent Committee is to oversee the expenditure of 
revenues generated by Measure A and to make recommendations to the City Council 
regarding those expenditures as set forth in Measure B. 
 
The intent of the voters was established in the Measure B ballot language: “(i) 65% of 
(the proceeds of the Measure A tax)  be used only to pay for law enforcement and crime 
prevention services in the City such as those described in the City’s Marshall Plan on 
Crime and (ii) 35% of its proceeds be used only to pay for the City’s efforts to end the 
bankruptcy and for services to residents, businesses and property owners.”  The 



  

 

Marshall Plan on Crime includes the City’s stated objective  of hiring 120 additional 
sworn police officers by June 30, 2017. 
 
 
APPLICABLE RULES 
 
The Committee will have seven qualified members and a prescribed term of office, will 
meet at least quarterly  to review the expenditure and revenues generated by this 
Transaction and Use Tax (general sales tax), will be given pertinent information to 
review the revenues and expenditures, will report their recommendations and findings to 
the City Council as required by ordinance, will inform the public as appropriate, and will 
operate using Rosenberg’s  Rules of Order and standards of ethics. 
 
The following provides more details. 
 
1) Appointments 
 
The City Council shall make appointments to the Committee by resolution. The 
Committee shall be composed of seven members. 

2) Qualification Standards 
 
To be qualified a person must be at least 18 years of age and reside within the City’s 
geographic boundary. The Committee may not include any employee or official of the 
City, or any vendor, contractor or consultant doing business with the City. 

3) Conflicts of Interest 
 
By accepting appointment to the  Committee,  each  member  agrees  to comply with 
Articles 4 (commencing with Section 1090) and 4.7 (commencing with Section 1125) of 
Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code and the Political Reform Act (Gov. Code 
§§ 81000 et seq.), and to complete the Form 700 as required by all “designated 
employees” of the City. Additionally, each member shall comply with the Committee 
Ethics Policy which is presented in paragraph 13, below. 

4) Term 
 
Each Committee member shall serve for a term of service concurrent with the City 
Council member making the nomination. 

5) Chair 
 
The Committee shall annually elect a chair and a vice-chair who shall act as chair only 
when the chair is absent, and whose duties shall be consistent with Rosenberg’s Rules 
of Order. Any item supported by two members is sufficient to insure it is on the next 
agenda. 



  

 

Duties of the chair include: 

 Scheduling meetings well in advance 
 Seeking information from City staff when necessary 
 Scheduling reporting deadlines 
 Developing agendas 
 Distributing materials in a timely manner, and 
 Following up with requests made to City staff. 

 

6) Compensation 
 
Committee members shall not be compensated for their services. 

7) Informational Materials 
 
At least quarterly, financial reports – including proposed Budgets and Actuals with 
detailed supporting schedules will be sent to each Committee member. The reports will 
show revenue generated by Measure A, detailed line-item expenditures as presented 
in the annual budget relative to Measure B (public safety), and all other uses of 
remaining Measure A funds and State Board of Equalization reports,  Because 
Measure A was approved by the citizens of Stockton as a general sales tax, all 
revenues and expenditures will be included in the General Fund of the City, meaning 
that these proceeds will support certain general operations of the City as identified in the 
Ordinance and  not necessarily in distinctive accounts or separate departments or 
divisions.   

8) Meetings 
 

a) The Committee shall conduct an annual meeting with the City/independent 
auditor and City staff, each year within 60 days following the audit of the prior 
fiscal year’s books. The purpose of the annual meetings is for  Committee 
members to review the expenditures of Measure A proceeds and the audits, as 
attested by the City/independent financial auditor, to ensure that tax proceeds 
are expended for the purposes set forth in the applicable Measure A and B 
ballot language. The annual meeting will also include the task of adopting an 
annual report of their findings for presentation to the City Council. 
 

b) In accordance with the Charter, the Committee will meet at least one 
additional time to review budgets for Measure A revenues and Measure 
B (public safety) expenditures before the City Council’s public sessions 
on the upcoming annual budget. 

 
c) Special meetings may be called by the City and/or Committee when additional  

information relative to Measures A and B is  available. Special meetings may 



also be called by Committee members if a majority of the members petition the 
chair for a special meeting. 

d) All meetings shall be held in the Stockton City Council Chambers or another
room having space for the public to attend.

e) All meetings shall be open to the public in accordance with the Ralph M.
Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950 et seq. Each member of the
Committee will be given a current copy of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

f) A majority of the  Committee members shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of any business.

g) Except  as  otherwise  provided  by  adopted    Committee  policies,  City
Council Policy, or applicable law, meetings shall be conducted in accordance
with Rosenberg’s  Rules of Order,

The minutes of the Committee meetings shall be provided to the City Council and 
placed on the next available regular Council meeting agenda thereafter. 

9) Authorized Activities

a) Review copies of financial reports that provide revenue and expenditures of
Measures A and B.

b) Receive and review copies of the City’s annual independent audit which is
required by the Ordinance.

c) Observe Public Safety Marshall Plan activities for which tax proceeds have
been or will be expended, in accordance with access procedures established
by the City Manager.

d) The  Committee will review the sunset provisions, its applicability and
whether the City has supporting evidence and appropriate findings as
outlined by the Ordinance.  The Committee may make recommendations
regarding the sunset provisions to the City Council in a public session before
the action is taken to sunset or extend the tax.

e) Committee members shall not have the authority to direct staff of the City.

f) Individual members of the Committee retain the right to address the City
Council, either on behalf of the Committee or as an individual.

Annually the Committee will submit a report to the City Council,  in  pub l ic  
sess ion ,  with the results of their work including the elements listed below. The report 
will also be made available to the public. 



  

 

A statement indicating whether the City is in compliance with the purposes set forth in 
the applicable ballot measures with respect to the tax proceeds;  

A review of Measure A tax revenues and related uses of funds to verify that amounts 
collected were expended for the purposes set forth in the applicable ballot measure and 
City Council direction; 

A review of the City’s progress in implementing the goals and objectives of the Marshall 
Plan on Crime, including the hiring of 120 additional sworn police officers and public 
safety support staff by June 30, 2017; and 

A written summary of the Committee’s proceedings, activities, recommendations to the 
Council and responses by the Council for the preceding year. 

The City will propose a budget for the Measure A sales tax revenues and related uses of 
funds for the upcoming fiscal year which will be presented to the Committee members 
before City Council consideration and approval of the City’s annual budget.  The  
Committee will consider the proposed budget in accordance with all City rules, 
regulations and policies and may make recommendations regarding the proposed 
budget for Measures A and B to the City Council in a public session.   

10)   Vacancies and Removal 
 

a) The City Council shall fill any vacancies on the  Committee. 
 
b) The City Council may remove any Advisory Committee member for any 

reason, including failure to attend two consecutive  Committee meetings 
without reasonable excuse or for failure to comply with the Committee 
Ethics Policy. Upon a member's removal, his or her seat shall be declared 
vacant. 

 
11) The  City  shall  provide  to  the    Committee  necessary  technical  and 

administrative assistance as follows: 
 

a) Preparation of and posting of public notices as required by the Brown Act ; 
 
b) Ensuring that all notices to the public are provided in the same manner 

as notices regarding meetings of the City Council; 
 
c) Providing of a meeting room, including any necessary audio/visual equipment; 
 
d) Preparing and copying documentary meeting materials, such as agendas 

and reports; 
 
e) Retaining all  Committee records, and providing public access to such 

records on an Internet website maintained by the City; and 
 



  

 

f) Providing appropriate staff to all  Committee proceedings and answering 
questions relative to Measures A and B. 

 
12) Termination 
 
The Committee shall automatically disband if the enabling ordinance is revoked. 

13) Citizens’ Advisory Committee Ethics Policy Statement 
 
This Ethics Policy Statement provides general guidelines for  Committee members to 
following carrying out their roles. Not all ethical issues that Committee members face 
are covered in this Statement.  However, this Statement captures some of the critical 
areas that help define ethical and professional conduct for Committee members. The 
provisions of this Statement were developed from existing laws, rules, policies and 
procedures as well as from concepts that define generally accepted good business 
practices.   Committee members are expected to strictly adhere to the provisions of this 
Ethics Policy. 

a) Conflict of Interest.   A Committee member shall not make or influence a City 
decision related to any City purchase or contract which will benefit the 
committee member's outside employment, business, or a personal finance or 
benefit an immediate family member, such as a spouse, child or parent. 

 
b) Outside Employment.   A Committee member shall not use his or her 

influence over a Committee matter to negotiate future employment with any 
person or organization that relates to a City purchase or contract. For a 
period of two (2) years after leaving the Committee, a former Committee 
member may not represent any person or organization for compensation in 
connection with any matter pending before the City that, as a Committee 
member, he or she participated in personally and substantially. 
 

c) Commitment to Uphold Law.   A Committee member shall uphold the federal 
and California Constitutions, the laws and regulations of the United States 
and the State of California and all other applicable government entities, and 
the charter, policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the City. 

 
 
 
 
 
Adopted October 23, 2014 



1

Bylaws for the Yolo County  
General Plan Citizens Advisory Committees 

1. The purpose of the appointed General Plan Citizens Advisory
Committees (“Citizens Advisory Committees”) is to provide local input
and recommendations to the Planning and Public Works Department
(“Department”) on implementation of the County General Plan, any
local plans, and related land use matters. A Mission Statement
(Attachment A) has been adopted to guide the committees.

2. All Citizens Advisory Committees shall abide by these Bylaws. Each
Citizens Advisory Committee should adopt their own Standing Rules,
which may set detailed rules and procedures for their own local
committees, so long as they remain consistent with the Bylaws.

3. Standing Rules should be adopted by each Citizens Advisory
Committee.  The Standing Rules should include detailed rules and
procedures for their own local committees, such as the time and
location of meetings, time limits for speakers, adjournment time, and
any other procedural items not already addressed by these Bylaws.
Standing Rules are adopted by a simple majority vote and may be
amended by a two-thirds vote at a regularly scheduled meeting, for
which public notice has been given in advance of the specific changes
to the Standing Rules that are being proposed.

4. Members of the Citizens Advisory Committees are appointed by the
Yolo County Board of Supervisors.  People interested in becoming a
member of a Citizens Advisory Committees must fill out an application
at the end of the calendar year and submit it to the Clerk of the Board’s
office by December 15. Applications are generally acted upon by the
Board of Supervisors in January of each year.  The term of
membership on the Citizens Advisory Committees shall be two years.
The terms of committee members shall be staggered. Members must
re-apply to be appointed for consecutive terms.

5. Upon a majority vote, the Board of Supervisors may dismiss committee
members at any time during their term.  The Board of Supervisors may
appoint replacements for members who do not complete their term, as
needed, and the replacement will serve the remaining term.

6. Upon a majority vote of the members of the Citizens Advisory
Committees, the committee may recommend that the Board of
Supervisors dismiss or not re-appoint a member due to three
consecutive absences or four absences within a one year period.



 2

7. Interested parties who wish to become a member of a Citizen’s 
Advisory Committee must be either a resident within the CAC 
comment area, or a resident of Yolo County who owns either land or a 
business within the comment area. Members must be at least 18 years 
of age.  Only one member of the same household or business (as 
determined by mailing address) may serve as a member of the 
committee.  A member cannot serve on more than one committee at 
one time. 

  
8. The size of the Citizens Advisory Committees shall be a minimum of 

five members and a maximum of 17 members. The size of Citizens 
Advisory Committees should be an odd number.   

 
9. A chair of the Citizens Advisory Committees shall be nominated and 

elected by a majority vote of the committee annually, in February of 
each year or as soon thereafter as may be reasonably possible.  Each 
committee shall also elect a vice chair and a secretary.  The vice chair 
will assist the chair and run the meetings in the absence of the chair.  
The secretary, or a designated alternate, shall take the minutes for 
each meeting. 

 
10. A quorum for purposes of conducting business and adopting motions 

shall constitute a simple majority of the total number of appointed seats 
on a Citizens Advisory Committee.  If a quorum is not present, a 
meeting can proceed but no motions or actions may be adopted.   

 
11. Roberts Rules of Order shall be used to conduct the meetings and 

adopt motions. The “Rosenberg Rules” (a summary of Roberts Rules 
of Order) shall be used to guide the committees in meeting procedures 
and is attached to these bylaws (Attachment B). Motions shall be 
approved by a majority of those attending.  Proxy voting (voting by a 
committee member not present or by an alternate) is not allowed.  

 
12. The Citizens Advisory Committees are subject to, and shall abide by, 

the requirements of the State of California Open Meeting law (the 
“Brown Act”). Meeting notices and agendas must be posted and made 
public at least 72 hours before a regular meeting, and at least 24 hours 
for a special meeting. In addition, meeting materials must be available 
to the public at the time they are distributed to members of the Citizens 
Advisory Committee.  A summary of the Brown Act has been prepared 
by County Counsel and is attached to these bylaws (Attachment C). 

 
13. Written minutes of each committee meeting must be taken by the 

Secretary of the committee or designated alternate, approved at a 
following meeting by a quorum of those in attendance of the meeting 
pertaining to the minutes in question, and made available to the public. 



 3

The minutes should include details or a summary of the discussions, 
actions, and motions approved, at each meeting. 

 
14. A member of the Department shall serve as the liaison to the Citizens 

Advisory Committee and shall attend all regular meetings.  The 
Planning staff liaison will be appointed by the Planning Director and is 
subject to change without notice. 

 
15. Subcommittees of the Citizens Advisory Committee may be appointed 

by the chair.  The subcommittee must be chaired by a voting member 
of the committee.  Ad hoc subcommittees (that meet for limited terms 
and purposes) that do not constitute a quorum of the Citizens Advisory 
Committee, and do not include any members of the public, are not 
subject to the Brown Act for purposes of advance meeting notice.  
Regular standing subcommittees (that are ongoing) are subject to the 
Brown Act.  However, even where not required, every effort should be 
made to offer advance meeting notice of any subcommittee when 
practical and feasible. 

 
16. Public notices, background materials, and minutes for a Citizens 

Advisory Committee meeting should be distributed to committee 
members at least 72 hours before a regular meeting, and at least 24 
hours for a special meeting. Department staff will send out notices and 
materials one week before each meeting. Meeting agendas, notices, 
and materials will be sent by e-mail when possible, and by first class 
mail when e-mail is not available.  A committee has the option of 
tabling an action item and continuing to the next meeting, if materials 
have not been received in time by its committee members. 

 
17. The agenda for each Citizens Advisory Committee meeting shall be in 

a consistent format, as determined by the Department.  The agenda 
shall include the County letterhead and the Department contact 
information.  For every meeting, the agenda shall include a time set for 
Public Comment or Public Requests; Information Items, or 
Correspondence and Announcements; and Action Items; including a 
brief description of each Action Item. 

 
18. Citizens Advisory Committee meetings shall generally be scheduled on 

a monthly basis on the same day of the week each month. All 
committees shall meet on at least a quarterly basis (four meetings per 
year).  Special meetings may be called as needed. All meetings shall 
be held in a public or quasi-public place. 

 
19. Mailing and most duplicating costs for the Citizens Advisory Committee 

are handled by Department staff.  
 



 4

20. The Yolo County Board of Supervisors shall approve a “planning area” 
and a “comment area” boundary for each Citizens Advisory Committee 
(Attachment D). The “planning area” is the land located within 
designated community growth boundaries.  The “comment area” is a 
larger area that includes lands adjoining the community growth 
boundary and within which all discretionary planning applications are 
referred to the Citizens Advisory Committee.  The planning and 
comment area boundaries for each Citizens Advisory Committee may 
overlap with the boundaries of an adjacent committee. 

 
21. All discretionary planning applications received by the Department 

within a comment area shall be referred to the appropriate Citizens 
Advisory Committee for a recommendation.  If an application is located 
outside an adopted Citizens Advisory Committee comment area, the 
Department may elect to refer it to the committee that is the nearest 
geographically to the application location, at its discretion. 

 
22. The review of discretionary planning applications by a Citizens 

Advisory Committee shall follow the process outlined in the attached 
“Procedures for Reviewing Discretionary Planning Applications by 
Citizens Advisory Committees” (Attachment E).  

 
23. The chair or other officer of the Citizens Advisory Committee shall 

communicate any formal recommendation adopted in response to the 
review of a discretionary planning application to Department staff.  The 
motion, second, and vote on the recommendation shall be recorded in 
the approved minutes. 

 
24. A Citizens Advisory Committee may submit comments and 

recommendations to the Department on other planning, growth, and 
related issues, including proposed zoning ordinances, environmental 
impact reports, and non-County projects that may affect the committee 
planning area.  The committee may also review and make 
recommendations for other projects that are referred to it from other 
County agencies.  All recommendations from the Citizens Advisory 
Committees shall be submitted in writing to the Department, who shall 
forward them on to the agency or decision-making body, as 
appropriate.   

 
25. Members of the Citizens Advisory Committee shall be bound by the 

“Code of Ethics,” adopted by the County, and attached to these Bylaws 
(Attachment F).  

 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

MISSION STATEMENT FOR THE 
GENERAL PLAN CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

 
The Yolo County Board of Supervisors has charged the General Plan Citizens Advisory 
Committees with the following mission: 
 
These Citizens Advisory Committees are primarily devoted to General Plan, growth, land 
use, and other related issues and shall: 
 

� Serve as the main liaison between the community and County agencies, and 
other interest groups, on issues related to planning and land use; 

 
� Meet publicly, on a regular basis, to receive input from the community and 

provide a public forum for all local citizens concerned with improving the 
community, through  outreach;  

 
� Maintain the integrity and intent of the adopted Community General Plan and 

vision for the advisory committee area; 
 

� Represent the interests of the defined citizens committee area or community to 
the Yolo County policy makers by: 

• fact finding, 

• sharing information  

• facilitating discussion  

• fostering collaborative decision making 

• and presenting policy recommendations 
 

� Review applications for all discretionary permits (i.e., development applications 
that require Zoning Administrator, Planning Commission, or Board of Supervisors 
approval) within the defined area of the citizens committee, and make formal 
recommendations to the County boards. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



- 1 - 

ATTACHMENT F 
 

CODE OF ETHICS AND VALUES 

 

Preamble 

 

The proper operation of democratic government requires that those involved in making important 

decisions be independent, impartial, and accountable to the people they serve.  For this purpose, 

the Citizens’ Advisory Committee Procedures Subcommittee held a series of meetings in mid-

2009 for the purpose of developing, among other things, a Code of Ethics and Values.  The 

County of Yolo has adopted the Code of Ethics and Values developed by the Subcommittee to 

promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional conduct among those 

participating on all County advisory boards, commissions, and committees.   

 

The Board of Supervisors is responsible for appointing the members of County advisory boards, 

commissions, and committees.  All such members serve at the will of the Board.  They are 

expected to abide by this Code, understand how it applies to their specific responsibilities and 

practice its eight core values in their work.  Because the County requires public confidence in the 

recommendations of its boards, commissions, and committees, their decisions and our work must 

meet the most demanding ethical standards and demonstrate the highest levels of achievement in 

following this Code. 

 

Statement of Ethics and Values 

 

1. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be ethical. 

 

• I am trustworthy and act with the utmost integrity. 

 

• I am truthful, do what I say I will do, and am dependable. 

 

• I make impartial decisions, free of bribes, gifts, narrow political interests, and 

financial and other personal interests that impair my independence of judgment or 

actions.  In particular, except as noted below, I will not participate in deciding any 

matter that involves any of the following interests: 

 

• A direct financial interest, meaning that outcome of the matter is reasonably likely 

to affect my income or the value of my investments (including real property).  

 

• A real property interest, meaning that my property is either directly involved in 

the matter or is within 500 feet of the property at issue.  If my property is within 

500 feet of the property at issue, however, I may participate in deciding the matter 

so long as I reasonably believe the outcome will not significantly affect my use 

and enjoyment of my property. 

 

• If a matter affects the direct financial or real property interests of my immediate 

family (spouse or dependent children), my business, my employer or other source 



- 2 - 

of income to me or my immediate family, I will act as though my own financial or 

real property interests are involved for the purposes of this Code.   

 

If I have any of the foregoing interests or if I otherwise cannot make a decision in an 

impartial manner, I will recuse myself from all further consideration of the matter, 

and leave the room prior to any vote.  I recognize that I may address the advisory 

board, commission, or committee regarding the matter prior to leaving the room as 

part of the public hearing or other opportunity for comment on the matter, provided I 

have first recused myself from participating in the matter as a member.   

 

• I am fair, distributing benefits and burdens according to consistent and equitable 

criteria. 

 

• I extend equal opportunities and due process to all parties in matters under 

consideration.  If I engage in unilateral meetings and discussions, I do so without 

making voting decisions and in a manner consistent with California’s open meeting 

law, the Brown Act. 

 

• I use my title(s) only when conducting official County business on behalf of my 

board, commission, or committee, for information purposes, or as an indication of 

background and expertise, carefully considering whether I am exceeding or appearing 

to exceed my authority.   

. 

2. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be professional. 

 

• I apply my knowledge and expertise to my assigned activities and to the interpersonal 

relationships that are part of my board, commission, or committee position in a 

consistent, confident, competent, and productive manner. 

 

• I approach my position and related relationships with a positive attitude. 

 

• I keep my knowledge and skills current and growing relevant to my community 

service. 

 

3. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be service-oriented. 

 

• I provide receptive and courteous service to everyone. 

 

• I am attuned to, and care about, the needs and issues of citizens, public officials and 

county employees. 

 

• In my interactions with constituents, I am interested, engaged and responsive. 

 

• I exhibit a proactive, innovative approach to setting goals and conducting the 

County’s business. 

 



- 3 - 

 

4. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be fiscally responsible. 

 

 

• I make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking into 

account the long-term financial stability and related needs of my community, as well 

as  the County and other government entities. 

 

• I demonstrate concern for the proper use of assets (e.g., personnel, time, property, 

equipment, funds) of the County and other government entities, and follow 

established procedures. 

 

• I make good financial decisions that seek to preserve programs and services for 

County residents that are served by my board, commission, or committee. 

 

5. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be organized. 

 

 

• I act in an efficient manner, making decisions and recommendations based upon 

research and facts, taking into consideration short and long term goals and relevant 

timeframes.   

 

• I will not use procedural or other means for the purpose of delaying action by my 

board, commission, or committee on matters delegated for our consideration. 

 

• I follow through in a responsible way, keeping others informed, and responding in a 

timely fashion. 

 

• I am respectful of established County processes and guidelines. 

 

6. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be communicative. 

 

• I convey the County’s care for and commitment to its citizens. 

 

• I communicate in various ways that I am approachable, open-minded and willing to 

participate in dialog. 

 

• I engage in effective two-way communication, by listening carefully, asking 

questions, and determining an appropriate response which adds value to 

conversations. 

 

7. As a representative of the County of Yolo, I will be collaborative. 

 

• I act in a cooperative manner with groups and other individuals, working together in a 

spirit of tolerance and understanding. 

 



- 4 - 

• I display a style that maintains consistent standards, but is also sensitive to the need

for compromise, “thinking outside the box,” and improving existing ideas when

necessary.

• I accomplish the goals and responsibilities of my individual position, while respecting

my role as a member of a team.



32ND ANNUAL TRI-STATE SEMINAR 
September 20 - 22, 2016 

Las Vegas, Nevada 

NAME: 

ADVANCE REGISTRATION DEADLINE: AUGUST 31, 2016 

MEALS:        YES SPOUSE:        YES  SPOUSES' TOUR:        YES 
      NO        NO        NO 

DEPARTMENTAL TRAVEL BUDGET:  

REGISTRATION: TRAVEL: 
TOTAL REMAINING BALANCE: 

PROPOSED EXPENSES: Registration:  
Transportation: 
Meals:* 
Miscellaneous: 
TOTAL: 

*DIRECTORS: Expenses are outlined in Section 4.06.1 of the District’s Rules and Regulations.
*FOR STAFF: Meal limitations are outlined on pages 30 and 31 of the District’s Employee Manual.

Please review these limitations. 

HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS:       YES        NO  REGISTRATION DEADLINE:9-19-16 
ARRIVAL DATE/TIME:       DEPARTURE DATE/TIME: 

TYPE OF ACCOMMODATIONS: SINGLE (1 PERSON) 
DOUBLE (2 PEOPLE) 
(2 PEOPLE/2 BEDS)

AIRLINE RESERVATIONS:        YES       NO 

DEPART FROM          on    at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)           (time) 

RETURN FROM     on                       at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)          (time) 

SUPERVISOR APPROVAL: DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5

















GCMS TRAINING 
October 25 - 28, 2016 
Columbia, Maryland 

NAME: 

ADVANCE REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 

MEALS:        YES SPOUSE:        YES  SPOUSES' TOUR:        YES 
      NO        NO        NO 

DEPARTMENTAL TRAVEL BUDGET:  

REGISTRATION: TRAVEL: 
TOTAL REMAINING BALANCE: 

PROPOSED EXPENSES: Registration:  
Transportation: 
Meals:* 
Miscellaneous: 
TOTAL: 

*DIRECTORS: Expenses are outlined in Section 4.06.1 of the District’s Rules and Regulations.
*FOR STAFF: Meal limitations are outlined on pages 30 and 31 of the District’s Employee Manual.

Please review these limitations. 

HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS:       YES        NO  REGISTRATION DEADLINE:9-19-16 
ARRIVAL DATE/TIME:       DEPARTURE DATE/TIME: 

TYPE OF ACCOMMODATIONS: SINGLE (1 PERSON) 
DOUBLE (2 PEOPLE) 
(2 PEOPLE/2 BEDS)

AIRLINE RESERVATIONS:        YES       NO 

DEPART FROM          on    at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)           (time) 

RETURN FROM     on                       at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)          (time) 

SUPERVISOR APPROVAL: DATE: 





AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1






	AgendaRegular8-10-16
	Agenda for Regular Meeting

	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item6.3
	Item6.4
	Item6.5
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item7.5
	Item8.1



